Public Document Pack

C\’\;GDII .
i1 Y Filint
i " Contact Officer:
!ilulgxgbul re Sharon Thomas 01352 702324

sharon.b.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

To: ClIr lan Roberts (Chairman)

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Adele Davies-
Cooke, Andy Dunbobbin, David Healey, Ray Hughes, Colin Legg, Phil Lightfoot,
Dave Mackie, Nancy Matthews, Vicky Perfect, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and
Carolyn Thomas

Co-opted Members
Janine Beggan, David Hytch, Rebecca Stark, Bernard Stuart and Rev. John
Thelwell

22 April 2016
Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Education and Youth Overview & Scrutiny
Committee which will be held at 11.30 am on Thursday, 28th April, 2016 in the
Council Chamber, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA to consider the following items

* Please note the start time for this meeting

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES
Purpose: To receive any apologies.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING
DECLARATIONS)

Purpose: To receive any Declarations and advise Members accordingly.

3 CONSIDERATION OF A MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE
PURSUANT TO THE CALL IN ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 3 - 6)

A decision of the Cabinet meeting on 19 April 2016 relating to School
Modernisation - School Standards and Organisation Act 2013 - Ysgol
Llanfynydd, has been called in. Attached is a copy of the procedure for
dealing with a called in item.




SCHOOL MODERNISATION - SCHOOL STANDARDS AND
REORGANISATION ACT 2013 - YSGOL LLANFYNYDD (Pages 7 - 66)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) enclosed. Portfolio of the
Cabinet Member for Education.

To assist Members, the following documents are attached:-

e Copy of the report of the Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - School
Modernisation - School Standards and Organisation Act 2013 - Ysgol
Llanfynydd

e Copy of the Record of Decision

e Copy of the Call In Notice

Yours faithfully

e

T

Peter Evans
Democracy & Governance Manager



Agenda Iltem 3

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

CALL-IN ARRANGEMENTS

1. Background

The arrangements for calling in a decision are to be found in paragraph 16
of the Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules contained within the Council’s
Constitution. The legal authority is derived from section 21 (3) of the Local
Government Act 2000. This note summarises the provisions in the
Constitution.

2. Decision of the Cabinet

When a decision is made by the Cabinet, the Democracy & Governance
Manager publishes a record of those decisions within two days of them
being made. Copies are available at County Hall, and are sent to all
Members of the County Council.

The decision record bears the date on which it was published and specifies
that the decision will come into force, and may then be implemented on the
expiry of five working days after the publication of the decision, unless it is
called in within 5 working days after the publication of the decision

3. Calling in a Decision

If the Democracy & Governance Manager receives a request from the
Chair or at least four members of the Council, (for the avoidance of doubt
such a request should be in writing, giving the reason for the call-in, and
signed by all parties) the Democracy & Governance Manager will notify the
decision taker of the call-in, and then arrange a meeting of the Committee
within seven working days of the decision to call-in. (The last working day
before Christmas and the three working days between Christmas and New
Year will not be counted as working days for the purposes of this
paragraph).

4. The Call-in Meeting

By their nature, call-in meetings will be held at short notice (i.e. within
seven working days of the call-in decision) and the only item of business to
be transacted would normally be to deal with the call-in. However, from
time to time it is expedient to consider a call in at a meeting which has
already been convened.

It is suggested that the procedure outlined below be used at such a
meeting.

Page 3

Updated: RJR May 2015 1



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Procedure for a Call-in Meeting

The decision makers who have been invited to the meeting (usually the
relevant Cabinet Member(s) and/or Chief Officer(s)) should be invited to
sit at the committee table at the start of the meeting, as should any
initiators of the call in who are not already members of the committee.

The Chairman will invite the Member Engagement Manager to briefly
outline the call-in procedure for Members of the Committee, explaining
the time constraints within the Constitution. The Officer should also
outline the ideal procedure, set out below, for an Overview & Scrutiny
Committee to deal with a call-in meeting.

The Chairman will then invite the initiators of the call-in (those who have
signed the letter) to explain and clarify their reasons for calling in the
decision. This can be by means of a spokesman, or by several Members
contributing.

The decision makers will then have the opportunity to respond to the
issues raised by those initiating the call-in and provide further information
if they believe that it will assist the committee’s understanding of the
decision.

The Chairman will then invite questions from Members, and the decision-
makers and call-in initiators will be invited to answer the questions.

At the end of Members’ questions, the Chairman will ask the initiators of
the call-in and the decision makers to sum up their respective cases.

The Chairman will then invite the Member Engagement Manager to
explain the Committee’s options for decision contained in the
Constitution. The decision should include one of the four options given
below, which are contained in the Constitution.

Option 1

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
satisfied with the explanation which it has received, it will indicate as
such, in order for the decision to be implemented.

Option 2

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
‘no longer concerned’, having received the explanations, but is not
minded to indicate that it is ‘satisfied with the explanation’, then it is in
order for the Committee to resolve that ‘the explanation be accepted but
not endorsed by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee’.

Page 4

Updated: RJR May 2015 2



(viii)

Option 3

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
still concerned about it, then it may refer it back to the decision making
person or body for reconsideration, setting out in writing the nature of its
concerns. If referred to the decision maker then the decision maker shall
then reconsider, at the earliest scheduled meeting, amending the
decision or not, before adopting a final decision.

Option 4

If, having considered the decision, the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is
still concerned about it, then it may refer the matter to full Council. If
referred to full Council, the Council shall meet to consider the referral
within 10 working days unless there is a scheduled meeting of the full
Council at which the matter may be considered within the expiry of a
further 5 working days.

Note:

If either Option 1 or Option 2 is decided upon, the Cabinet decision can
be implemented after the Overview & Scrutiny meeting. If either Option 3
or 4 is decided upon, the Cabinet decision cannot be implemented after
the Overview & Scrutiny meeting until it has received further
consideration by either the Cabinet or Council.

The Committee will then discuss the matter and following debate, reach
a decision.

Page 5

Updated: RJR May 2015 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

Su?y Fflint
("!i!in!o%!z.ire

CABINET
Date of Meeting Tuesday, 19 April 2016
Report Subject School Modernisation — School Standards and
Reorganisation Act 2013 — Ysgol Llanfynydd
Cabinet Member Cabinet Member for Education
Report Author Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
Type of Report Strategic
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To inform Cabinet of the responses from the statutory objection period for Ysgol
Llanfynyndd.

To invite Cabinet to determine on the statutory proposal for school organisational
change at Ysgol Llanfynyndd.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1

Cabinet is requested to consider the responses from the statutory
objection period for Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Cabinet is requested to determine whether to implement the proposal for
school organisational change at Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Page 7



REPORT DETAILS

1.00

EXPLAINING SCHOOL ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE AT YSGOL
LLANFYNYDD

1.01

In June 2015 Cabinet determined that we enter into formal consultation on
closure and other school organisation options for Ysgol Llanfynydd by
September 2016.

1.02

The proposal was put forward on the basis of criteria laid down in the

Council’s School Modernisation Strategy, namely:

o Unfilled places across the primary school portfolio — Ysgol Llanfynydd
as at January 2015 (based on the Pupil Level Annual School Census or
PLASC) had 42 full time pupils with unfilled places at 47.5%. As of
September 2015 the school population had 34 full time pupils with
unfilled places at 57.5%.

e Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools supported by pupils not from
their local community and/or small numbers within the community raise
concern regarding sustainability within the school’s portfolio); for 44%
of pupils attending Ysgol Llanfynydd is not their nearest school, and

e Small School Criteria — the school population and capacity of Ysgol
Llanfynydd is lower than national designation of a small school,
additionally school numbers do not meet the minimum requirements of
primary school models as noted in the Council’s School Modernisation
Strategy.

1.03

The formal consultation period for Ysgol Llanfynydd commenced on
Wednesday 21st October 2015 and ended on Wednesday 2" December
2015. The Council issued consultation documents in accordance with the
statutory School Organisation Code.

1.04

The committee report and consultation report was considered by
Education and Youth Overview and Scrutiny 6" January 2016 and Cabinet
19t January 2016.

1.05

Cabinet determined that a Statutory Proposal be issued for Ysgol
Llanfynydd. This was published on 29t January 2016 and ran until 26t
February 2016.

1.06

Under the School Organisational Code the Statutory Proposal for Ysgol
Llanfynydd is determined by the Council’s Cabinet, rather than Welsh
Ministers.

1.07

Reviewing the future of any school is controversial and emotive. Pupils,
parents, carers and teachers, past and present, have strong ties to local
schools as part of their own life-stories. The Council is challenged with
balancing the sensitivities of community feeling on the one hand, with
providing a high quality primary education offer which can be sustained
and afforded. The Council cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and students.

Page 8




1.08

During the objection period, the Council has received the following
concerns in summary form:

e Concerns about the consultation document, accuracy of data &
evidence (including cost of repair work) and concerns that the
Council haven't followed process.

e Impact on the community/future use of site should the school close.

Opinion that federation is a viable option, concern that the Council

are not actively encouraging federation.

Opinion that closing schools should not be about money.

Traffic and transport.

Admission and transition arrangements.

Potential Housing developments not taken into consideration.

Impact on children.

Parental preference is being taken away.

Opinion that there is not sufficient places in other schools in the

area.

1.09

Responses also focussed on the strengths of the school, i.e. standards of
provision, the school remaining stable through the consultation process,
professional staff, being a ‘close knit’ school and being valued by the
community.

1.10

The Council has issued consultation documents and the Statutory
Proposal in accordance with the School Organisation Code.

1.11

The consultation documents are subject to rigorous compliance checks
prior to their publication, which includes verifying information provided by
the schools and national sources (see Appendix 1 - Compliance
Statement).

1.12

The Council would take all practicable steps to ease the transition for all
pupils, most especially for vulnerable learners such as those with
Additional Learning Needs (ALN). As part of implementation plans the
Council would work alongside pupils, their parents, and the relevant
schools to make appropriate transition arrangements for pupils to
familiarise themselves with their new environments (subject to parental
preference).

1.13

The Council has demonstrated in its consultation documents that there is
sufficient capacity within the local school network to accommodate pupils
from Ysgol Llanfynydd should it close. This view is upheld by Estyn in its
response. However, additional places if required can be established at
Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn for that school to be available to all current
pupils at Ysgol Llanfynydd. This would be at either no cost or minimal
cost.

1.14

Transport eligibility is determined by the Authority in which the pupil
resides. Seventeen pupils who live in Flintshire would be entitled to free
home to school transport based on the assumption that pupils transfer to
their nearest school (Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn) on the following
grounds:

Page 9




o that the nearest appropriate available school is more than 2 miles
away;

o that the route to the alternative schools would be considered to be
hazardous by the Council due to its rural location which has limited
footpaths in and out of the village.

1.15

The Council needs to ensure there are a sufficient number of school
places, of the right type, in the right locations. This is not straightforward in
that there are a large number of surplus school places in some areas of
the County, whilst other areas don’t have enough places to meet the local
demand. In other areas, school populations are sustained by children and
young people from outside the local area through parental preference.
School Organisation change does not take away a parents ability to
express a preference for a school of their choice.

1.16

The percentage of surplus places in Flintshire schools continues to remain
above the Welsh Government target of 10%. Since funding for schools is
largely driven by pupil numbers, surplus capacity means a disproportionate
amount of funding is spent on infrastructure (such as buildings) and the
“fixed costs” of running a school (such as leadership and administration).
This funding could be used to ensure that pupil teacher ratios are
minimised to make a direct difference to learners. As public service
funding reduces over forthcoming years the case for reprioritisation and
change becomes even more compelling.

1.17

Estyn’s formal response to the consultation confirms the independent
inspectorate’s view that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the
present standards of education provision in the area. Overall, pupil
outcomes in all four alternative schools are currently good, with all schools
judged as having the necessary capacity to improve further.

1.18

Under the Regulations, governors have had powers to federate since
2010. The Council has considered and discounted the option of federation
within its consultation documents. At the time of writing, the Governing
body of Ysgol Llanfynydd has not been able to identify a willing partnering
school or schools with which to pursue a federation. There is no prospect
of a federation (see appendix 4 — response from Ysgol Parc y Llan,
Treuddyn Governors).

1.19

The community impact assessment identified that the school was not
widely used for community purposes. It did identify a number of possible
areas where the proposal could have some negative impact on a small
number of local families and on the local community. There are however
other community facilities in the areas, i.e. Ffrith and Llanfynydd
Community Hall and Cymau Community Centre in which activities can be
accommodated.

1.20

The Council has no preconceived plans for the use of the school site
should the school close. In line with established practice, future usage of
the school site will only be determined following confirmation that the
school site is no longer required for educational purposes.

Page 10




1.21

Previous and current school leaders have worked hard to maintain stability
within the school’'s operations and should be commended for this.
However, pupil numbers have dropped from 43 full time pupils in January
2015 to 36 full time pupils at January 2016. This will not provide sufficient
income to sustain high quality provision at the school. With such
exceptionally low numbers maintaining the quality of the social experience
within the school will also be challenging.

2.00

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

2.01

There is sufficient staff capacity to prepare the detailed transition plans for
pupils.

2.02

Should the current proposals be implemented, the Council will work with
the current members of staff at Ysgol Llanfynydd, including teaching and
support staff, should they seek redeployment opportunities. Staff displaced
by the proposal may have the opportunity to be employed in the local
primary network.

2.03

The estimated annual costs of transport as a result of the proposal are
£16,150. However, actual transport costs can only be assessed once all
families have a school place confirmed at an alternative school.

3.00

CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01

No further consultations are required as part of the School Organisation
Code.

4.00

RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01

A Programme Board is set up to oversee the implementation business
plans and manage risks in close detail. Reports are made to Cabinet and
Overview and Scrutiny at key stages of decision-taking, performance
reporting and evaluation.

5.00

APPENDICES

5.01

Appendix 1 — Compliance statement

Appendix 2 — Objection report

Appendix 3 — Estyn response

Appendix 4 — Response from Ysgol Parc y Llan, Treuddyn Governors

Page 11




6.00

LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01

All responses from the objection period are available for Cabinet Members.

Additionally for Cabinet, and in accordance with the School Organisation
Code to make a determination the following documents will also be made
available:-

a copy of the consultation document

a copy of the consultation report

a copy of the published notice

a copy of the objection report

copies of the statutory objections

copies of all of the above in relation to any proposals which are related
to the proposal requiring approval (not applicable in the case of this
proposal)

Contact Officer: Damian Hughes, Senior Manager, School Planning
and Provision

Telephone: 01352 704135

E-mail: Damian.hughes@flintshire.qov.uk

7.00

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01

PLASC — The Welsh Government Pupil Level Annual School Census is
mandatory with returns for all sectors required every January including
nursery, primary, middle, secondary and special. Returns are required
every January.

School Organisation Code - The new School Standards and
Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 makes Local Authorities responsible (rather
than the Welsh Ministers prior to October 2013) for the determination of
most statutory school organisation proposals that receive objections. Such
provisions apply to any proposals published on or after 15t October 2013
that consider the establishment, discontinuance or otherwise significantly
alter schools.

The Council does this in line with the Welsh Government’s statutory
School Organisation Code

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/1307 19-school-organisation-
codes-en.pdf

Estyn - Estyn is the education and training inspectorate for Wales. Estyn
is responsible for inspecting primary and secondary schools and nursery
schools maintained by, or receive funding from local authorities.

Federation — The federation of schools is a legal process which enables
schools to work together through a formal structured process by sharing a
governing body that will make decisions in the best interest of all the

Page 12



mailto:Damian.hughes@flintshire.gov.uk
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/130719-school-organisation-codes-en.pdf

schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

The Welsh Government have brought in new regulations around federation
of maintained schools in Wales. The Federation of Maintained Schools
(Wales) Regulations 2014 which came into force on 22 May 2014 gives
effect to Council’'s powers to federate schools. (School governors already
have powers to federate by choice under provisions introduced in 2010).
These powers have now been consolidated into the 2014 Regulations.

Page 13




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Compliance Statement in Relation to the Current School Proposals

Introduction: School Organisation:

The School Organisation Code imposes requirements and provides guidelines in
respect of all school organisation proposals in Wales.

For all of the current school organisation proposals the School Modernisation Team
have planned the consultations, decision making and statutory notices in line with
what the Code requires.

Consultation Process Timescales:
RAG Status: GREEN

The Schools Modernisation Team are required to ensure that timescales are
adhered to in relation to school organisation proposals.

The timescale and process for consultation, decision making and statutory notice for
the current school proposals have been checked and verified with Flintshire County
Council Legal Team and through external verification through the Welsh
Government Officers.

Welsh Government Consultation Documentation Checklist.

RAG status: GREEN

In the case of all school organisation proposals, the consultation document must
contain certain information in line with School Organisation Code, July 2013
(Document number: 006/2016).

A RAG checklist has been produced by Welsh Government School Governance &
Organisation Branch for the current school organisation proposals. The RAG
checklist document follows a colour coding system in order to highlight any missing
information or areas which Welsh Government felt could have been dealt with more
thoroughly.

Ysgol Llanfynydd andYsgol Maes Edwin proposals have all been assessed by the
external Welsh Government Officers as having no concerns identified.

Flintshire County Council Consultee Checklist:

RAG status: GREEN

When bringing forward statutory proposals the School Organisation Code provides
a full list of consultees that the proposer should consult with during the statutory
process. An internal checklist has been produced by the School Modernisation
Team to assess if the required statutory consultees have been identified.

Ysgol Llanfynydd and Ysgol Maes Edwin consultee checklist have all been

assessed by the external Welsh Government Officers as having no concerns
identified.

Page 15



Appendix 1

Verification of Data in the Consultation Document:

RAG status: GREEN

The School Modernisation Team uses the latest verified data at the time of
constructing the consultation documents:

School pupil numbers and more detailed information around pupils (for example
Additional Learning Needs, English as an Additional Language and School
action/school action plus/statemented) are obtained from the schools own
statistical returns (September or January)

Estyn data is obtained from the schools last Estyn inspection. Timing of
inspections will depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle.

National Welsh Government categorisation data, is based on the school returns.
The Council use the most up to date data at the time of document construction
from the Welsh Government website. Welsh Government update their national
data base annually.

GwE (The Regional School Improvement Service) data is fed into the Welsh
Government's national categorisation system.

The Welsh Government's national Measuring Capacity of Schools in Wales
forms are verified by Head teachers, this provides the School Capacity and
Admission Number.

Unfilled places are recorded by Welsh Government; the Council provide its
returns to Welsh Government annually; they are also based on official school
returns.

Birth Information by area is obtained from the Office of National Statistics
Pupil projections are aligned with the methodology as neighbouring Authorities
with North Wales

Housing development information is based on actual current housing
applications provided from the Planning Officers.

Potential pupils which may be generated from new housing developments is
calculated using a formula providing by a partnering Authority (Conwy CBC)
who derive the formula based on the latest census returns.

Pupil teacher ratios are provided by publically available statistics on a school
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by Welsh Government and is
updated on an annual basis.

Foundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes are provided by publically
available statistics on a school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by
Welsh Government is updated on an annual basis

School Building condition information is provided by an external company who
compare the school building condition against the building bulletin for Primary
and Secondary schools

Backlog maintenance information is provided by through independent
consultants Property Condition Surveys are undertaken on a 5 year cycle.

Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:-

Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken within 1 year

Priority 2: Essential work required to be undertaken within 2 years

Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] required to be undertaken within 3 to 5
years

Priority 4: Long term work [deemed as] required to be undertaken outside the 5
year [cycle] period

Page 16


http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

Appendix 1

The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year financial investment and element 4
defines a six - ten year financial investment.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and include for preliminaries, labour,
plant and materials etc. These costs are based on the current building cost
information service [BCIS] provided by the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading provider of cost and price information within
the construction and maintenance areas. These costs [Unit Rates] are present
within the condition survey software to a default figure and amended/updated as
required by the Consultant. The budget costings are exclusive of VAT, updated
annually [using inflation indices] and reviewed post completion of work.

e School suitability information is provided from Suitability surveys undertaken
independently in line with DffE Asset Management guidance and reviewed by
FCC officers and amended if work has been completed at schools post initial
survey.

e School Budgetary Work is conducted using agreed formula as per the School
budget forum. Cost per pupil data is obtained from the Authority’s section 52
budget statements.

e Travel distances between school sites is provided by the Flintshire County
Council mapping system Route Finder 3.41

e Transport costs are provided by the infrastructure unit who administer home to
school transport contracts.

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



CYNGOR

Siry Filint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

J

OBJECTION REPORT

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd as of the
31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to
nearby schools subject to parental preference

This is the provisional draft response of the Council which is being provided to
decision makers for discussion - a final view and objection report will be
published before the end of 7 days beginning with the day of determination

MARCH 2016

Should you require a hard copy of this report in hard copy please email
21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk with your name and postal address.
Please indicate whether you would like to receive the document in Welsh,
English or both.

Page 19



Flintshire County Council - Education & Youth

Objection Report

Proposal to close Ysqgol Llanfynydd from
31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to nearby schools subject to
parental preference

Purpose

The report is published in line with the requirements under section 49 of the
School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. This is a summary of
the statutory objections — otherwise known as “the Objection Report”.

Publication of the Statutory Notice

Following the formal consultation period and the publication of a consultation
report, Cabinet took the decision to proceed to publish the proposal by way of
a statutory notice for 28 days from Friday 29t January 2016 to Friday 26"
February 2016.

The statutory notice was published in line with the requirements of the School
Organisation Code. The notice was published on the Flintshire County
Council website and posted at the main entrance of Ysgol Llanfynydd. Each
school affected by the proposal received electronic copies of the notice and
provided with details of how to obtain hard copies of the notice.

During the objection period, 78 objections were received in relation to the
proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd from 31st August 2016 with pupils
transferring to nearby schools.

The correspondence received during the objection period was in a number of
methods and included:

75 email,
3 letter and

Of the 78 objections received, there were issues with the following objections
14 signed but had no address

In what areas do the objectors reside?

Llanfynydd 32
Ffrith 11
Cymau 5
Other 3
Flintshire 3
Brymbo 2

Page 20



Hope

New Brighton, Wrexham

Drury

Gresford

Higher Kinnerton

aAlalalalipdin

Pontblyddyn

TOTAL 63

* The figure of 63 is reflected by respondents either based at the same
address, their address was incomplete or unclear or they did not provide an
address

Q8 In what areas do the objectors reside?

Answered: 63 Skipped: 15

Ponthlyddyn
Higher Kinnerton —-—'——‘—wl

Gresford

Dt r/
New Brighton,
W‘re:h%e /\

Brymbro
Flintshire
Other

Lianfymyudd

Cymau —

Firith

In accordance with the School Organisation Code (2013) this Objection
Report is made available to stakeholders via an email link and also published
electronically on Flintshire County Council’s website at:

www.flintshire.gov.uk/schoolmodernisation

To request a hard (paper) copy of this document please email
21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk, or write to the School Modernisation
Team, Flintshire County Council, County Hall, Mold, Flintshire, CH7 6ND, or
contact the team on 01352 704015 or 704134.

Page 21


http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/schoolmodernisation
mailto:21stcenturyschools@flintshire.gov.uk

z¢ obed

Point Raised (in order of highest %)

Local Authority Response

No of written
responses

raising the

point

Responses

% of

raising the

point

Consultation Document Flawed

e Closure would offer very little benefit to the Council

e Evidence used for closure is flawed

e Capacity for the school is based on 2007 stating 80 pupil
capacity and should be based on 2011 of 64 pupil capacity

e The last Estyn report was in 2009. The school was not given
an updated inspection to aid the decision process

e The document is heavily biased towards closure of the school

e FCC state that there are 1967 surplus places in Flintshire.
This includes secondary schools, an unfair exaggeration in
their favour

e Estyn comments in the consultation document are
unacceptable because they are basing their judgement on a 6
year old report

e The proposals do not take account the future needs of the
rural population and leads to inequality of choice for families

e The document does not include births since 2013

The Council is satisfied that the publication and
requirements of the Code have been met. The
consultation process and documentation followed
regulatory guidance as set out in the Welsh
Government’s School Organisation Code 2013.

The Council uses the latest verified data at the
time of constructing the consultation documents:
e School pupil numbers and more detailed
information around pupils (for example Additional
Learning Needs, English as an Additional
Language and School action/school action
plus/statemented) are obtained from the school’s
own statistical returns (September or January)

¢ Estyn data is obtained from the school’s last
Estyn inspection. Timing of inspections will
depend on Estyn's own inspection cycle and is
not in the Council’s control

¢ National Welsh Government categorisation data
is based on the school returns. The Council uses
the most up to date data at the time of document
construction from the Welsh Government website.
Welsh Government update their national
database annually.

6

(=]

o
»
N
S~




ez abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

oGWE (The Regional School Improvement
Service) data is fed into the Welsh Government's
national categorisation system.

e The Welsh Government's national Measuring
Capacity of Schools in Wales forms are verified
by Head teachers, this provides the School
Capacity and Admission Number.

In 2006 the guidance for Measuring the Capacity
in Schools in Wales was updated to provide more
information to Councils, the actual method to
calculate a school’s capacity remained
unchanged.

Capacity was reviewed in 2011 due to changes in
school layout. However, alterations to the
capacity at Ysgol Llanfynydd would mean that the
school’s capacity would reduce by more than 10%
of the current admission number. Changes of this
nature would require a statutory consultation and
the Headteacher was advised accordingly. It was
agreed that the capacity remained as previously
agreed (signed off by the head teacher in 2007)
Working with a hypothetical reduced capacity the
school would still have had approximately 30%
unfilled places, in any event this would still trigger
a review as per the Council School Modernisation
policy and also the School Organisation Code.




vz abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

Welsh government annually require The Council
as the Admitting Authority to complete a
consultation period with all schools to review their
capacity and admission number and admission
arrangements.

eUnfilled places are recorded by Welsh
Government; the Council provides its returns to
Welsh Government annually; they are also based
on official school returns.

¢ Birth Information by area is obtained from the
Office of National Statistics.

¢ Pupil projections are aligned with the
methodology of neighbouring Authorities within
North Wales.

¢ Housing development information is based on
actual current housing applications provided from
the Planning Department.

o Potential pupil numbers which may be
generated from new housing developments are
calculated using a formula providing by a
partnering Authority (Conwy CBC) who derive the
formula based on the latest census returns.

¢ Pupil teacher ratios are provided by publicly
available statistics on a school
(http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk), provided by
Welsh Government and updated on an annual
basis.



http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

Gz abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

esFoundation Phase and Core Subject Outcomes
are provided by publicly available statistics on a
school (http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk),
provided by Welsh Government and updated on
an annual basis.

¢ School building condition information is provided
by an external company who compare the school
building condition against the ‘Building Bulletin for
Primary and Secondary schools’.

eBacklog maintenance information is provided by
independent consultants Property.

Condition Surveys are undertaken on a 5 year
cycle. Priority Codes [definition] are as follows:-
Priority 1: Urgent work required to be undertaken
within 1 year

Priority 2: Essential work required to be
undertaken within 2 years

Priority 3: Desirable work [deemed as] required to
be undertaken within 3 to 5 years

Priority 4. Long term work [deemed as] required
to be undertaken outside the 5 year [cycle] period
The element Total 1 - 3 defines a five year
financial investment and element 4 defines a six -
ten year financial investment.

As highlighted in the Consultation report the roof
at Ysgol Llanfynydd has slipping slates due to nail
[fixings] fatigue associated with the main duo
pitched roof. Additionally the roof has the original
old lath and plaster beneath, which would also
need to be replaced.



http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/

9z abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

Work items are costed by the Consultant and
include for preliminaries, labour, plant and
materials etc. These costs are based on the
current building cost information service provided
by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors as
the leading provider of cost and price information
within the construction and maintenance areas.
These costs [Unit Rates] are present within the
condition survey software to a default figure and
amended/updated as required by the Consultant.

The budget costings are exclusive of VAT,
updated annually [using inflation indices] and
reviewed post completion of work.

eSchool suitability information is provided from
suitability surveys undertaken independently in
line with DffE Asset Management guidance and
reviewed by the Council and amended if work has
been completed at schools post initial survey.

e School budgetary work is conducted using
agreed formula as per the School budget forum.
Cost per pupil data is obtained from the
Authority’s section 52 budget statements.

o Travel distances between school sites is
provided by the Flintshire County Council
mapping system Route Finder 3.41.

e Transport costs are provided by the Integrated
Transport Unit who administer home to school
transport contracts.




/¢ abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

The Council has demonstrated in its consultation
documents that there is sufficient capacity within
the local school network to accommodate pupils
from Ysgol Llanfynydd should it close, this view is
upheld by Estyn. However, additional places if
required can be established at Ysgol Parc y Llan,
Treuddyn at either no cost or minimum cost.

The consultation document includes reference to
the primary school portfolio has 1967 (or 17.15%)
unfilled places (based on January 2015 PLASC).
The unfilled places only includes the primary
sector and not the secondary sector.

The secondary school portfolio has 2206 (or
20.37%) unfilled places (based on January 2015
PLASC.

The Council are unable to maintain all schools in
the current financial climate especially where
there are significant surplus places within the
system. Should the proposal be implemented
there will still be a balance of provision in area
including rural, town, faith and language provision
maintaining parental preference.




gz abed

Consultation Document Flawed (continued)

The birth rate information was provided by
Census information from the Schools
Management Information Team. There was no
birth information available post 2013 due to the
timing of the availability of the census data. Since
issuing the consultation document the 2014 birth
information has become available, the birth rates
for the area are included below. There is no
significant increase in births in the area of
Llanfynydd, and surrounding area. Birth rates
remain static in the area.

Ward 2014
Caergwrle 15
Higher Kinnerton 11
Hope 35
Leeswood (Halved 8
between Mold/Hope

SPPA)

Llanfynydd 16
Penyffordd 32
Treuddyn 14
TOTAL 130




62 obed

Impact on the Community

The closure would have a hugely negative impact on the
community

Llanfynydd is in the lowest quartile for access to services in
the Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation

The area does have a community centre, riding centre and
school are all sources of local pride and community spirit

The school is the heart of the community

The school is the only link for many people to their neighbours
to support and socialisation within the community

The school helps to generate customers for Local businesses
The threat of closure has made us seriously consider
relocating away from the area

Without the school the whole character of the ‘Best Kept
village’ in Flintshire will be seriously degraded

The elderly living in the bungalows will miss the extra ‘footfall’
and children’s play sounds

There will be no dedicated venue for community events
Closure of the school are the effects on the economy of the
area

The village wouldn’t be the same

The Community Impact Assessment was completed by the
Headteacher who was not from the area and was applying for
other employment at the time

The Council acknowledges that where a school
closure is proposed it will have some impact on
the local community, although the community use
of the school is relatively low.

The School Organisation Code suggests that the
Council should complete a Community Impact
Assessment to measure the impact and how the
impact can be minimised or negated. The
Council is satisfied that it has met the statutory
consultative and publication requirements of the
School Organisation Code.

It is recognised that the school plays an important
role in the wider community. Should the proposal
be implemented there would be scope to extend
links with alternative schools. Due to the
proximity of the alternative schools to the village
of Llanfynydd, the Council would seek to assist
the Governing body of the alternative schools and
PTA to foster links with the wider Llanfynydd
community. The Council will work with the school
and community to mitigate issues where possible.

Llanfynydd is in the highest quartile for access to
services in the Welsh Index of Multiple
Deprivation, and is not in the lowest quartile.

The Council has no plans for the site, and will not
consider the future of the site until such time as
the school’s future is determined.

63

80.7%




0€ abed

Impact on the Community (continued)

The Council notes the concerns about the impact
on the community. However there are a number
of villages within Flintshire, and wider, which do
not have a village school but continue to have a
thriving and engaged community. Should
parents/carers wish for their child/children to
access a village school provision there are
schools within the area with surplus places.




T¢ obed

Strengths of the school

There has been a great deal of investment in the school

The school has been recognised by Estyn that ‘Cwriwlwn
Cymraeg that learners bilingual Developments feature
predominately in the life of the school’. Are other schools able
to equal the requirement of the WESP

In 2004/2005 the Authority installed at some considerable
expense a Wetroom — this is a unique feature and makes it
the only school available to see to demands of disabled pupils
needing a wet room with added facilities

Not many pupils have left the school during the process and
teachers have remained very professional

It's a fantastic school

It's a good, achieving school: it is a very happy school

The children are nurtured and allowed to develop as
individuals

Being able to grow up and learn in such a small and close-knit
school environment only increased my confidence

Ysgol Llanfynydd is a much valued and excellent little rural
school which should be supported and expanded

One size does not fit all in educational terms and a wide range
of different sizes and types of school are necessary

The school is closely associated with the local church do the
alternative schools have the same links

It has wonderful staff

Because its small you get a lot of attention

Bullying is less widespread and can be resolved more swiftly
What | have achieved is because of the fabulous education
and sporting encouragement | received

Research has shown that small/medium class sizes

The positive responses from consultees regarding
Ysgol Llanfynydd are noted.

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.
The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one
hand, with providing a high quality education offer
which can be sustained and afforded. The Council
cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and
students.

Ysgol Llanfynydd is a Community Primary English
medium school and Welsh is taught as a second
language. The proposal provides parents/carers
with the option for English medium education for
children with Welsh taught as a second language.
This is similar to the current position and pupil
access.

The current proposal provides access and
maintains parental preference for language
medium.

The national curriculum for the Foundation Phase
includes Welsh Language Development (Welsh

54

70.5%




Z2€ abed

Strengths of the school (continued)

as a second language). Pupils in the Foundation
Phase should learn to use and communicate their
needs in Welsh to the best of their ability. Pupils
should be encouraged to do so and should be
increasingly exposed to Welsh. At Key Stage 2
pupils should build on these skills. This is
followed by all schools in Wales.

It is noted that Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn has a
successful record at the Eisteddfod as a school
with Welsh second language over the past 3
years and hosts the Treuddyn Eisteddfod which
Ysgol Llanfynydd attends on an annual basis.

At present there are no pupils in Ysgol Llanfynydd
who require specialist changing facilities.

Ysgol Llanfynydd is an English community
primary school, and is not a denominational
school, the alternative schools are also English
community primary schools and are also not
denominational schools. The Council does
recognise the close links the school has with the
church. Due to the proximity of the alternative
schools to the village of Llanfynydd, the Council
would seek to assist the Governing body of the
alternative schools and PTA to foster links with
the wider Llanfynydd community. The Council will
work with the school and community to mitigate
issues where possible.




ec abed

Roof Repair Costings

The roof does not need fixing
The costs to fix the roof of 80k seems crazy

80,00 is not a definite cost, it is a possible cost at some point
in the future

Flintshire building tips guide advise to get three building
quotes from reputable companies before undertaking any
building work

The condition surveys are carried out by
independent surveyors, commissioned by the
Council. They survey schools on a five year cycle
in line with national guidance and provide the
Council with maintenance priorities. The work to
repair the roof was identified as a priority,
therefore urgent repair work was programmed
accordingly.

As stated in the consultation report, the roof at
Ysgol Llanfynydd has slipping slates due to nail
[fixings] fatigue associated with the main duo
pitched roof. Additionally the roof has the original
old lath and plaster beneath, which would also
need to be replaced.

Work items are costed by the Consultant and
include for preliminaries, labour, plant and
materials etc. These costs are based on the
current building cost information service [BCIS]
provided by the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors, [RICS] as the leading provider of cost
and price information within the construction and
maintenance areas. These costs [Unit Rates] are
present within the condition survey software to a
default figure and amended/updated as required
by the Consultant. The budget costings are
exclusive of VAT, updated annually [using
inflation indices] and reviewed post completion of
work.

51

65.3%




7€ obed

Roof Repair Costings (continued)

The council manages the acquisition of all its
goods, services and works, strictly in accordance
with their Contract Procedure Rules [CPR's].
These CPRs have the following key objectives:

oTo0 ensure that the council obtains value for
money and achieves best value as defined in
section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999;

oTo ensure that the council complies with UK and
European law that governs the procurement of
goods, services and works;

oTo establish procurement procedures which,
when followed, should protect members and
officers of the council from any allegation of
acting unfairly or unlawfully.

oTo ensure that fairness and transparency remain
at the forefront of all procurement activity.

Contract procurement by the council is governed
by detailed European and UK legislation. The law
requires all council procurement and contracting
to be conducted transparently, fairly and in a non-
discriminatory manner.




G¢ abed

Alternative Schools

Demand for school places in the area that particularly
Abermorddu would not be able to fill

There are currently more applications than places in the area

The suggestion to increase the capacity of Ysgol Parc Y Llan
to accommodate pupils will fill all the spare places in the local
schools, allowing no room for any extra pupils in the area due
to new housing developments

Parents who have been attempting to find their children places
for their children

Council boundaries will be changing in the very near future
and therefore it is not possible to predict what the future
educational needs of the new Council will be and any decision
should be left until these become clear

Abermorddu has recently been rated as Amber on
MyLocalschool website, so would offer a less good education.

Standards at Ysgol Parc Y Llan will fall as the ratio of pupils to
staff will increase and there will be less resources per pupil

Pupils will end up being educated in porta-cabins

Not one of the alternative schools can offer the same of higher
level of educational standards

Parents are having problems placing siblings together

It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient
capacity within the local school network to
accommodate pupils from Ysgol Llanfynydd
should it close.

All applications to transfer to another school will
be dealt with in accordance with the Council's
admissions policy and the School Admissions
Code. Every effort will be made to keep siblings
together and there is some discretion under the
Admissions Code to admit pupils to a year group
even though it is full and subject to certain
conditions being met. Each application must be
dealt with on its merits taking in to account the
circumstances at the school, such as the number
in each year group, the capacity of the school,
class organisation, etc. The Council cannot keep
places in reserve for any pupils who may move in
to an area as this is not legal.

School modernisation proposals will continue to
be reviewed during any future Local Authority
amalgamation.

As part of their response to the consultation
document Estyn concluded that the proposal is
likely to at least maintain the current standards of
education in the area based on the information
and data provided within the consultation
document and overall pupil outcomes in all four
alternative schools are currently good, with all
schools judged as having the necessary capacity
to improve further.

41

52.5%




9¢ abed

Alternative Schools (continued)

The Council included a range of data and
statistical information within the consultation
document relating to outcomes and standards at
Ysgol Llanfynydd and the alternative schools.
This included data at both Foundation Phase and
Key Stage 2.

The consultation document also points out that
where cohorts are small, such as Ysgol
Llanfynydd outcomes should be treated with
caution. Furthermore Estyn state that the
proposer provides detailed information on each of
the alternative schools capacity to provide a
broad and balanced curriculum at both the
Foundation phase and key stage 2.

The Council provided a range of contextualised
data regarding both Ysgol Llanfynydd and the
proposed alternative schools. Further data was
available regarding other possible alternative
schools within the area for comparison. This
included data relating to assessed cohorts at the
Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2, Estyn
reports and commentary regarding provision at all
schools subject to the proposal.




/€ abed

Results and achievement of the school
e The standard of teaching is beyond reproach
e Academic results are consistently excellent
e |t's an achieving school

The positive responses from consultees regarding
Ysgol Llanfynydd are noted.

It is the view of the Council and the view of Estyn,
that should the current proposal be implemented
pupils would have access to at least an equivalent
standard of educational provision.

34

43.5%




g¢ abed

Federation

e FCC are not looking at federation schools, it works perfectly
well in Wrexham and has done with Mr Ashford

o Federation has not been actively encouraged by Flintshire
Local Authority

o |f a Federation if possible and desirable e.g. with Parc Y Llan,

it could be imposed if this is the best solution for both schools.

e Why are Flintshire County Council so anti-federation

The federation of schools is a legal process which
enables schools to work together through a formal
structured process by sharing a governing body
that will make decisions in the best interest of all
the schools, staff and pupils in that federation.

The Welsh Government have brought in new
regulations around Federation of maintained
schools in Wales. The Federation of Maintained
Schools (Wales) Regulations 2014 which came
into force on 22 May 2014 give effect to Councils
powers to federate schools. (School governors
already have powers to federate by choice under
provisions introduced in 2010). These powers
have now been consolidated into the 2014
Regulations.

An alternative suggestion of federation had been
suggested by a number of consultees, notably the
governing body. The Governing body of Ysgol
Llanfynydd has not been able to identify a willing
partnering school or schools with which to pursue
a federation. There is no prospect of developing
a successful federation without a willing partner or
partners. Ysgol Parc Y Llan Governors have
confirmed that they have not and will not be
bringing forward a federation proposal with Ysgol
Llanfynydd.

The Council’s position was clear in the
consultation documentation. The option to
federate Ysgol Llanfynydd with another school
would not address surplus places at the school.
In the context of the Flintshire surplus places
there is a significant number of surplus places as

34

43.5%




6E abed

Federation (continued)

Should Ysgol Llanfynydd federate with another
school the cost per pupil would remain
unaffected, as federated schools maintain their
individual budgets.

Cabinet members in their decision making
regarding the proposal considered all information
from the consultation and whether or not to
publish a statutory notice in respect of the
proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd.

The Council is aware of the benefits that the
acting headteacher arrangements with the
Headteacher at Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn
have had to Ysgol Llanfynydd. Ysgol Parc Y Llan,
Treuddyn Governors have provided written
confirmation that although sympathetic to the
schools situation they have decided not to enter
into a federation discussions with Ysgol
Llanfynydd.

Comment made by Carwyn Jones that closing Schools should
never be about saving money contradicts the Council’s
comments

e During the consultation meeting lan Budd drew attention to
the £52 reduction in funding for public services over the next
three years and the funding challenges. These were your
rationale for proposing closure of the school.

e Carwyn Jones, First Minister recently met two governors and
told them that school closures should never be based on cost
savings

e The Minister was genuinely shocked that Flintshire’s
education officers were openly stating that this was all about
cost savings

The proposal to close Ysgol Llanfynydd was put
forward on the basis of criteria laid down in the
Council’'s Modernisation Strategy, namely:-

Unfilled places across the primary school
portfolio:

1. Ysgol Llanfynydd as at January 2015 (PLASC)
had 42 full time pupils with unfilled places at
47.5%. As at September 2015 the school
population has 34 full time pupils with unfilled
places at 57.5%

2. Diminishing resource criteria (i.e. schools
supported by pupils not from their local
community and/or small numbers within the
community raise concern regarding sustainability

34

43.5%




oY abed

Comment made by Carwyn Jones that closing Schools should
never be about saving money contradicts the Council’s
comments (continued)

within the school’s portfolio); for 44% of pupils
attending Ysgol Llanfynydd, it is not their nearest
school, and

3. Small School criteria — The School and
capacity of Ysgol Llanfynydd is lower than
national designation of a small school, additionally
school numbers do not meet the minimum
requirements of primary school models as noted
in the Council’'s School Modernisation Strategy.
This leads to higher costs per pupil; unnecessary
building, leadership and administration costs.
The proposal will enable the Council to focus on
the spending in the classroom in a time of annual
diminishing budgets for schools for the
foreseeable future.

The Council has a statutory responsibility to
review educational provision within their area to
ensure that resource is directed in an effective
and efficient way, with a focus of resources being
directed towards the benefit of pupils teaching
and learning. Effective planning of educational
provision allows for resource to be redirected to
support the provision of new facilities.

Traffic and Transport Impact

¢ New people from the area were being provided with free
transport to Abermorddu school and not Ysgol Llanfynydd —
this has had a knock on impact

The Road Safety Team have completed a Traffic
Regulation Order assessment for the provision of
double yellow lines around Abermorddu Primary
School and the school is on the assessment
priority list for completion of these works subject
to available funding. Additionally a request has
been made to the Technical Performance section
of Streetscene for the traffic light sequence to
stay on green for longer to allow school traffic to

32

41%




T obed

Traffic and Transport Impact (continued)

Up until about six years ago transport was provided from
Cymau to Ysgol Llanfynydd. The withdrawal of this transport
to Abermorddu has obviously resulted in children moving from
Ysgol Llanfynydd to Abermorddu School

In Abermorddu traffic is already very dangerous in the area
before and after school

If pupils are transported to Abermorddu this will only increase
the number of vehicles

The journey times would create great difficulties for many
children

The distance that pupils will have to travel to other schools will
disadvantage them and could well affect their performance in
future years

exit around the school during school opening and
closing times to assist with the flows of traffic, this
request is currently under review with
Streetscene.

The Consultation documentation recognises that
most pupils at Ysgol Llanfynydd would see an
increased distance from their home address to
the alternative school, and would not be able to
utilise walking routes within the village, due to its
rural location.

However the increase in travel time would not be
in excess of the learner travel guidance.

Transport eligibility is determined by the Council
in which the pupil resides. 17 pupils who live in
Flintshire would be entitled to free home to school
transport based on the assumption and modelling
that pupils transfer to Ysgol Parc Y Llan,
Treuddyn (nearest available school) on the basis
of the following grounds:

e That the nearest appropriate available
school is more than 2 miles away;

e That the route to the alternative schools
would be considered to be hazardous by
the Council due to its rural location which
has limited footpaths in and out of the
village.

Abermorddu Primary School is the nearest
primary school to the Cymau area, additionally
the route from Cymau to Abermorddu Primary
School is considered to be hazardous, and
therefore pupils are eligible for transport from
home to school. Should pupils from Cymau




2 obed

Traffic and Transport Impact (continued)

decide to go to Ysgol Llanfynydd, as they are
bypassing their nearest school they would not be
eligible for transport from home to school.

The estimated maximum annual costs of transport
as a result of the proposal are £16,150. However,
this was an indicative model. Actual transport
costs can only be fully assessed once all families
have chosen their preferred school.

The Council has a requirement to ensure it 1)
provides transport in line with statute and its own
policy and 2) that transport arrangements are
commissioned in accordance with the Welsh
Government Transport measure.

10

Admission Arrangements and Transition

There are no firm plans in place to confirm which school or
schools these pupils will transferred to

Parents should not be responsible for finding places for their
children, FCC and admission should be assisting more with
this

The statutory code states that in a proposal to discontinue a
school, the local Council must include admission
arrangements at the proposed alternative school — this has
not been done

The admission arrangements in the report are not explained in
way which parents would find helpful and appears as a simple
restatement of Flintshire CC general admission policy

You are not really giving us a lot of time to find an appropriate
school for our children

The Council is satisfied that the publication and
requirements of the Code have been met.

Admission arrangements to the alternative school
were provided in the consultation document in
section 18 page 68.

The Admissions information is also available on
the council’s website on the following link:
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/
School-Admissions.aspx

Advice and information about admissions was
readily provided to parents on request. Any
advice given was in accordance with the School
Admissions Code and the Council's admissions
policy. The Council’s Admissions Team has
responded to many requests from parents for

31

39.7%



http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Admissions.aspx
http://www.flintshire.gov.uk/en/Resident/Schools/School-Admissions.aspx

oy obed

Admission Arrangements and Transition (continued)

advice in order to provide parents with as much
information as possible. In individual cases all
options have been explored and appropriate
advice given. Where applications have been
received, alternative places have been allocated
in accordance with the admissions policy.

A mini admissions process will be administered to
assist families in transition to other school should
cabinet determine closure.

The Council would work with parents of Ysgol
Llanfynydd to ensure minimal disruption to pupils
who would be transferring to alternative provision.

The Statutory timeline complies with the School
Organisation Code. The timeline allows sufficient
time for parent/carers and pupils to select an
alternative school and allow effective transition
should Ysgol Llanfynydd close.

11

Consultation Process was flawed

o The Council have received 174 responses against the closure
of Ysgol Llanfynydd have these responses been listened to

e Any public authority which is required to consult should do it
with an open mind and should be willing to listen and to
seriously consider the responses it receives

e The author of the original report either was instructed to justify
closure or had already formed that opinion and was unwilling
to include the positive features of the school

o The consultation report does not respond to issues raised
during consultation

The Council is satisfied that the publication and
requirements of the Code have been met.

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution,
Cabinet Members must maintain objectivity in
decision making. It is the Council’s view that
discussions relating to this proposal were open
and honest. All the submissions made results in
a thorough and robust debate on the proposal
and Cabinet Members were fully informed of the
issues before making their decision.

The decisions of the Cabinet were reached
through the democratic process.

27

34.6%




vt abed

Consultation Process was flawed (continued)

e The cabinet meeting following consultation did not cover the
concerns of all those who responded, only questions from the
cabinet were responded to

e The Council has failed to comply with the School Organisation
Code as it has failed to follow the code by deviating from the
requirements of the Code in compiling the consultation report
‘respond to these by means of clarification, amendment to the

proposal or rejection of the concerns, with supporting reasons’

o As a member of staff | have not received any formal direct
correspondence during the entire consultation process

e Has Flintshire County Council really considered the
alternatives to closure

e The consultation document misquotes the Code and does not
state ‘responding to these by means of clarification,
amendment to the proposal or rejection of the concerns with
supporting reasons’.

The Council has engaged with the Headteacher,
School, Teachers and Support staff throughout
the process, including support offered through the
HR team. A meeting was also arranged
specifically for staff on the 23 November 2015 to
discuss the proposal and process. The HR
Business Partner Team have also offered
individual meetings should staff want to discuss
any concerns.

The consultation report does include in the main
text of the report a summary of each of the issues
raised by consultees, and a response to these by
means of clarification, amendment to the proposal
(not applicable) or rejection of the concerns with
supporting reasons — refer to Appendix E of the
consultation report.

12

Housing developments not been taken into consideration

Households numbers will grow in the area

e Many new homes are proposed to be built in Coed Talon
There is land designated under the local development plan in
Llanfynydd, if these homes are built there would be
competition for school places at Parc Y Llan

o The pupil yield in the consultation document is extremely
understated

¢ In the likely event that Flintshire County Council sell Ysgol
Llanfynydd for housing the area will be in the unfortunate
circumstance of requiring quality school facilities

The Council has fully considered school capacity
in the area together with potential housing
development yield within its consultation
documents.

Data regarding potential pupils which could be
generated from new housing developments is
calculated using a housing yield formula. The
housing yield formula has been derived from
research work based on national census data
from a partnering authority. This was applied to
all current housing development planning
applications approved by the planning authority.
The Council does not include sites which are on

21

26.9%




Gy abed

Housing developments not been taken into consideration
(continued)

e The document fails to take into account the current Local
Development Plan including developments in Treuddyn (6 NR
Sites), Llanfynydd (1 NR site), Cymau (1 NR Site),
Abermorddu (1 NR Site), Caergwrle (8 NR Site), Hope (6 Nr
Sites)

the Local Development Plan because they do not
have approved housing applications.

The housing yield figures produced are a
maximum figure and do not take into account
parental choice and/or pupil movement i.e. pupils
moving into the new homes but who are already
in the local education system. Additionally there
is no guarantee that all of these pupils would
access the provision at Ysgol Llanfynydd due to
parental preference for school provision in the
area, including faith and language medium.

The pace of housing developments will be
constrained by the plans of the site
owners/developers, the housing market, current
economic climate and other factors which are
unpredictable.

It is the Council’s view that there is sufficient
capacity within the local school network to
accommodate pupils from Ysgol Llanfynydd
should it close. Estyn have commented that:
‘Based on approved planning applications for new
housing developments within the catchments are
of the four schools, the proposers predict that an
additional 15 primary places will be needed.
These figures when added to the pupils at Ysgol
Llanfynydd, still demonstrate capacity within the
existing four schools to manage this increased
demand for school places.’

The Council have no plans for the site, and will




o abed

Housing developments not been taken into consideration
(continued)

not consider the future of the site until such time
as the school’s future is determined.

13

Statutory Notice process was flawed

e The statutory code states that a notice should insert details of
any other measures proposed to be taken to increase the
numbers of school places available as a consequence of the
closure of this school this has not been done

e The statutory notice was not given to Governors until Monday
1st February

e The statutory notice was not handed in person or by email
directly to the Board of Governors

The Council is satisfied that the publication
requirements of the Statutory Notice in
accordance with Code have been met.

The statutory notice was provided directly via
email to the school Headteacher and the school’s
generic email account, managed by the school
secretary. This is an administrative approach that
the Council have taken, individual contact details
for Governors are not held with the School
Modernisation Team. The Headteacher and
generic school email account was provided with
the link and instructed to make their
parents/carers/guardians/pupils/governors/School
Council/Staff Members and prospective parents
aware of the link and also advised that hard
copies were available on request. A hard copy of
the statutory notice was placed on the front door
of the school on the day the statutory notice was
issued - Friday 29t January 2016.

The Governors were provided with a copy of the
statutory notice via the School and have also
been provided with the opportunity to provide their
objections in writing in line with the Code. The
Chair of the school Governors has provided an
objection on behalf of all of the school Governors.
Additionally a number of Governors have
provided their own individual objections to the

21

26.9%




/v obed

Statutory Notice process was flawed (continued)

proposal.

The Council proposes that existing pupils may
attend either Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn English
medium community based primary school,
Abermorddu CP School, English medium
community based primary school, Ysgol Estyn,
Hope English medium community based primary
school or Bwichgwyn CP School, English medium
community based primary school. This is however
subject to parental preference and subject to
available places. Parents may express a
preference for the said schools or indeed another
school and the Council will comply with any such
expressed preference subject to the School
Standards and Framework Act 1998, Section 86

(3).

The proposal does not require that any measures
are taken to increase the numbers of school
places available as a consequence of the closure
of Ysgol Llanfynydd. The Council has
demonstrated in its consultation documents that
there is sufficient capacity within the local school
network to accommodate pupils from Ysgol
Llanfynydd should it close, this view is also
upheld by Estyn.

Additional places if required can be established at
Ysgol Parc Y Llan, Treuddyn should the pupils
wish to move as a group.




gy abed

Statutory Notice process was flawed (continued)

Should, if any alterations of the teaching spaces
be required this would be dependent on the

numbers and organisation of year groups subject

to the transfer of pupils should the proposal be
implemented.

The Council would work with parents of Ysgol
Llanfynydd to ensure minimal disruption to pupils
who would be transferring to alternative provision.

14

Impact on Children

The distance that pupils will have to travel to other schools will
disadvantage them and could well affect their performance in
future years

Friendship groups will be split up

Impact on the learners will be sacrificed for relatively
insignificant financial savings

The proposal to close the school is obviously not in the best
interests of pupils

Forget the human impact of these changes and insecurities of
the little children

There is not much evidence of care for the children’s
immediate future

Will have a detrimental effect to my child’'s learning and
development

My children would be heartbroken

When proposing changes to school organisation it
is acknowledged that there will be some changes
for pupils. Should the proposal be implemented
and Ysgol Llanfynydd be closed it would result in
changes for the existing pupils such as :

o Shorter journey time to school for pupils
who reside in Wrexham

¢ A marginally longer route to school for

pupils who live in the Llanfynydd area

A new school uniform

New teachers and support staff

New learning environment

Friendship groups may be affected,

however new friendships may be formed.

The Council will take all practicable steps to ease
the transition for all pupils, most especially for
vulnerable groups of learners such as Additional
Learning Needs (ALN). Should the proposal be
implemented the Council would work alongside
pupils, their parents, and the relevant schools to
make appropriate transition arrangements for
pupils to familiarise themselves with their new

11

14.1%




61 obed

Impact on Children (continued)

environment (subject to parental preference).

Where pupils have specific ALN needs, the
resource and support they require would be
replicated in their new learning environments.

At the time of preparing the consultation
document, under current transport policy 17
pupils would be entitled to free home to school
transport. This would be on the basis that the
route to the alternative school from Llanfynydd
would be considered to be hazardous due to its
rural location which has limited footpaths in and
out of the village.

The Council has a requirement to ensure it 1)
provides transport in line with statute and its own
policy and 2) that transport arrangements are
commissioned in accordance with the Welsh
Government Transport measure.

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.

The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one




0G abed

Impact on Children (continued)

hand, with providing a high quality education offer
which can be sustained and afforded. The Council
cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and
students.

The Council has made adequate arrangements to
ensure that the best interests of the learners are
ensured during this process. This has included
producing a children and young people’s
consultation document to which numerous pupils
have supplied responses. The Council in
conjunction Ysgol Llanfynydd facilitated a
consultation session for the School Council of
Ysgol Llanfynydd which allowed them to put
forward their views regarding the proposal.

The Council also produced a report for Cabinet
and consultees summarising the views of the
children and young people that were collected
during the consultation period. Additionally the
Council produced a summary of their views in a
report specifically for children and young people.

The Council would work with parents of Ysgol
Llanfynydd to ensure minimal disruption to pupils
who would be transferring to alternative provision.

15

Family connections with the school

e Myself and all my 5 siblings attended this school in the 1960’s
and some of my nephews and nieces since then

e The school has been used for so many years by generations
of children in this village

Reviewing the future of any school is
controversial and emotive. Pupils, parents, carers
and teachers, past and present, have strong ties
to local schools as part of their own life-stories.

The Council is challenged with balancing the
sensitivities of community feeling on the one

11

14.1%




TG obed

Family connections with the school (continued)

My family have attended this school for years

| would be devastated if this school was not available for me
to send my children to

hand, with providing a high quality education offer
which can be sustained and afforded. The Council
cannot avoid making decisions for the future
which are in the best interests of pupils and
students across Flintshire.

16

Savings/Budget/Funding

Previous VfM calculations would be negated if you closed the
school after the investment it has had.

The budget savings made from closing the school are made
up of a hypothetical costs for fixing a roof

Closing the school may achieve minimal financial savings to
the education budget in the short term but could lead to far
greater costs overall in the long term

The costs of making redundancies do not seem to have been
included

I wonder how much money has been used to finance other
projects in the past

The governing body of LIanfynydd were a source of jest by
senior education personnel when we suggested that we could
find a way of saving money by reducing our budget

Perhaps Flintshire County Council should consider a reduction
to the amount of people it employs for administration staff

The proposal has not detailed whether the proceed of sales of
redundant sites will meet the costs of proposal

Inefficient school organisation can result in
uneven and unfair funding patterns where some
schools receive a disproportionate share of
funding at the expense of pupils attending other
schools in the area, this is mostly the case of
schools that are classified as small schools. Any
school proposals should contribute towards
establishing a more equitable pattern of school
funding.

In line with regulatory requirements Flintshire
County Council has a schools funding formula
which is the methodology by which the budget
share for each school in the County is
determined. Each year the formula is reviewed
and in consultation with relevant stakeholders,
amendments are made to reflect changes in
funding and policy. (The detailed methodology
and the budget shares are sent to all schools and
a summary is published in what is referred to as
the section 52 budget statement).

Schools receive a budget for a financial year from
April to March and this is based on the pupils in
each school in the September preceding the
financial year. The 2015/16 section 52 budget

10

12.8%




2S abed

Savings/Budget/Funding (continued)

The First Minster has made it clear (TV interview 17 Feb) that
Authorities have been given extra funds to support rural

schools. Where has this money gone in Flintshire?

The costings are not clearly set out within the consultation
report in the context of the Estyn report published in May 2012
in respect of overall cost to the County of either closing or not

closing Llanfynydd school

statement has been used as the basis of analysis.

The primary school funding formula was
fundamentally reviewed in 2013/14 with full
involvement and consultation with schools and
other stakeholders including the Schools Budget
Forum and Education and Youth Scrutiny. The
formula must be applied consistently across all
schools with any changes to the formula being
consulted on and agreed. There is a primary
schools funding formula group comprising
Authority officers and nominated Headteachers
which meets regularly to consider formula issues.
A key ongoing concern from small primary
schools has been to secure adequate resources
to enable school leaders to fulfil their
responsibilities.

In 2015-2016 Ysgol Llanfynydd received a
formulae funding allocation of £217,715 which
represents £4,838 per pupil, ranking the school as
the highest funded per pupils in Flintshire, £1,569
higher than the average funding per pupil in
Flintshire. The higher level of per pupil funding
reflects the need to subsidise small schools by
the inclusion of a lump sum amounts within the
funding formula and also reflects the higher
premium costs per pupils in smaller schools.

The inclusion of potential redundancy costs would
be pre-determination of the proposal.

Additional funding from the Welsh Government




G abed

Savings/Budget/Funding (continued)

has been made available to three rural authorities
— Monmouthshire, Powys and Ceredigion. The
Minister for Finance and Government Business
Jane Hutt referred to this in her announcement on
the Draft Budget on 9 February and whilst not
education specific, the additional funding for those
rural authorities could be spent on schools.

The Council is satisfied that the publication
requirements of the statutory notice, in
accordance with the Code requirements have
been met.

The Council have no reconceived plans for the
use of the school site, and will not consider the
future of the site until such time as the school’s
future is determined.

The Council has met the requirements of the
School Organisation Code in its reporting of
financial matters. The Code also states that the
Council should take into account whether the
proposals will ensure a fairer and more equitable
distribution of funding.

Additionally, the Council is satisfied that it had
met the statutory consultative and publication
requirements of the School Organisation Code.

17

Parental preference is being taken away
e To keep siblings and friendship groups together pupils would

have to go to Ysgol Parc Y Llan which isn’t giving any parental
choice

The Council acknowledges that there is a number
of factors that determine where parents send their
child/children. However, the Council are unable
to maintain all schools in the current financial
climate especially where there are significant

7.6%




G obed

Parental preference is being taken away (continued)

surplus places within the system. Should the
proposal be implemented there will still be a
balance of provision in area including rural, town,
faith and language provision maintaining parental
preference.

The Local Authority will comply with statutory
requirements and the Welsh Government School
Admissions Code and will take account of the
expression of parental preference in the context
of its duty to ensure the provision of effective
education and the efficient use of education
resources. When considering applications, the
Local Authority will observe the provisions of the
School Admissions Code which states that
admission authorities should admit to the school’s
admission number and will rarely be able to prove
prejudice as a ground for refusing an additional
pupil while the numbers remain below the
admission number.

18

Childcare
e Ysgol Parc Y Llan has no after school club

e Although pupils from Parc Y Llan are able to attend Ysgol
Terrig, it offers a different language medium and may cause
anxieties for some pupils

Ysgol Parc Y Llan does have an after school club.
It is a shared after school club with Ysgol Terrig,
Treuddyn (Welsh medium community school)
based on the same site as Ysgol Parc Y Llan,
Treuddyn. The Headteacher of Ysgol Parc Y
Llan, Treuddyn has confirmed that the majority of
pupils who attend the club are English speaking.
The club is bilingual and pupils interact with other
pupils from Ysgol Terrig, Treuddyn on a regular
basis, this provides a unique opportunity for all
pupils to develop their Welsh language skills.

2.5%




GG abed

19

Impact of the proposals on the school numbers

e By virtue of proposing the close the school, has created an
environment in which parents are discouraged from using the
local school

The Council has to follow the process as defined
by the School Organisation Code.

The Council acknowledges that statutory
consultation around school organisation change
will cause a level of uncertainty within the local
school community, which can be a contributory
factor in pupil number reduction.

2.5%

20

Increasing Pupil Numbers

e Some marketing of the school may help increase the
admission numbers

e The Council has failed to support and promote this wonderful
school

The three main roles of a governing body are to:
(i) setthe aims and objectives for the school;
(i) agree policies, targets and priorities for

achieving these objectives;
(iii) monitor and evaluate the aims and
objectives and whether the policies, targets
and priorities are being met, always with a
view to promoting high standards of
educational achievement. Active promotion
of the school is a responsibility of the school
and its governing body.

The Council supports all of its schools through
support services.

2.5%

21

Comment supporting the Proposal

e | would like to go on record as expressing my full and

unequivocal support for the proposal

1%




Conclusion

As outlined during the consultation process, the proposal to close Ysgol
Llanfynydd from 31st August 2016 with pupils transferring to nearby schools
requires the approval of the Local Authority Cabinet Members. This Objection
Report alongside a copy of all the Objections, a copy of the consultation;
document; a copy of the consultation report, and a copy of the published
notice will be forwarded to Cabinet Members for determination.

Page 56



Estyn response to the proposal by Flintshire County Council to close Ysgol Llanfynydd,
an English medium community primary school as of 31%' August 2016

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and Training in
Wales.

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its
associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn. However,
Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code and the Act places no
statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school organisation matters. Therefore as a
body being consulted, Estyn will provide their opinion only on the overall merits of school
organisation proposals.

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the following
response to the information provided by the proposer and other additional information such as
data from Welsh Government.

Introduction/Proposal

e This is a consultation proposal by Flintshire County Council.

e The proposal is that Flintshire County Council close Ysgol Llanfynydd from 31st August
2016 with pupils transferring to other schools in the local area, subject to parental
preference

Background

e Ysgol Llanfynydd in a small English-medium primary school situated in the village of
Llanfynydd, Flintshire.

e The school currently has 34 pupils on role, a decrease from 42 pupils in January 2015.
Predictions indicate that over the next four years, pupil numbers are not set to rise.
Capacity at the school is 80 pupils.

e The current individual school budget per pupil is £4,838. This is the highest of all primary
schools in Flintshire.

e The Local Authority currently has 17.5% unfilled primary places, which is significantly above
the national target of less than 10%. In January 2015, they published a ‘Revised School
Modernisation Strategy’. To assist with reducing surplus school places, proposals within
this strategy include closing any primary school with less than 105 full time places.

Summary/ Conclusion

It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards of
education provision in the area. Overall, pupil outcomes in all four alternative schools are
currently good, with all schools judged as having the necessary capacity to improve further.
Pupil attendance in all of these schools is good.

The four local schools currently have 58 unfilled places between them with the potential for this
to be increased to 63. This would be sufficient to accommodate all pupils currently attending
Ysgol Llanfynydd. Based on approved planning applications for new housing developments
within the catchments are of the four schools, the proposers predict that an additional 15
primary places will be needed. These figures when added to the pupils at Ysgol Llanfynydd,
still demonstrate capacity within the existing four schools to manage this increased demand for
school places.

The proposers have considered two alternative options:

e Maintaining the status quo Page 57




e Federating or amalgamating the school with another school

The proposer outlines the expected benefits and disadvantages of the two options
appropriately. The proposal has also appropriately considered the advantages and
disadvantages of each option against the key drivers of educational improvement, suitable
buildings, unfilled places, diminishing resources and resilient school leadership.

The proposers have also recognised the potential impact of closure on the local community
and have completed a community impact assessment. This has identified a number of
possible areas where closure could have a negative impact on a small number of local families
and the village community as a whole. For example, on long term provision for community
groups

Based on this process, the proposal appropriately outlines the reasons for discounting
alternative options and the reasons for their preferred option. The Local Authority believes that
longer-term benefits for pupils outweigh any disadvantages

The proposer has suitability identified the relevant risks relating to the proposal and has
outlined clearly how these risks will be managed. However, the proposer has not clearly
identified how they will manage the risk of parents not being able to choose their preferred
alternative school

The proposer has given suitable consideration to the impact of the proposal on pupils’ travel
arrangements and their ability to access the provision. The proposer has clearly identified that
for 15 of the current 34 pupils attending Ysgol Llanfynydd, this is not their nearest school

They have predicted that 17 pupils who would have attended Ysgol Llanfynydd in September
2016 would be entitled to free transport to an alternative school. This would incur an annual
cost of £16,150. The proposal has identified that for most pupils living in the Llanfynydd area,
distance to school would increase but not in excess of Welsh Government guidelines.

Routes to and from schools in the area have been considered as hazardous due to its rural
location and limited safe walking routes through the village.

The proposer has completed a detailed separate equality and Welsh language impact
assessment to consider the potential impact in respect of all areas of equality and Welsh
language and the potential ways in which the impact can be limited and a positive impact can
be promoted.

This assessment summarises that there are no obvious negative impacts on Welsh Language
provision. Subject to parental preference, there is the option for pupils from Ysgol Llanfynydd
to access welsh medium education at other Flintshire schools should the proposal to close the
school go ahead.

Educational aspects of the proposal
The proposal contains useful details about the four alternative schools concerned, including

e Judgements from most recent Estyn reports

e Current Welsh Government categorisation including Standards groups and capacity to
improve

e Current level of support from the local authority

e Attendance levels over time

e Class organisation

Page 58




Three of the four alternative schools are currently in Welsh Government’s ‘Standards Group 3’
with one school in ‘Standards Group 1°. All four schools are currently judged as ‘yellow’
effective schools that know the areas in which they need to improve schools. Their capacity to
improve is categorised as good.

The proposer provides detailed information on each of the alternative school’s capacity to
provide a broad and balanced curriculum at both the Foundation Phase and key stage 2. It
outlines judgements made in the most recent Estyn inspection reports and progress that each
school as made in addressing their recommendations. The proposal judges that each school
has the capacity to at least maintain current standards in terms of curriculum delivery.

The document also gives a detailed analysis of each school’s most recent property building
survey. These show that each school is in a similar satisfactory condition fit to effectively
deliver the primary curriculum.

The proposer has undertaken a detailed equality impact assessment that carefully considers
the impact of the proposal on vulnerable groups including those with special educational needs
and with mobility issues. Where available, comments from the most recent Estyn reports from
each of the alternative providers, judges their provision for pupils with additional learners
needs as good.

The proposer suitably recognises the potential additional challenge of change for many pupils

and accurately considers how transition would be managed successfully these more
vulnerable groups of learners.

Page 59




This page is intentionally left blank



Ysgol Parc Y Llan Parc Y Llan CP School

Treuddyn 7 Treuddyn
Yr Wyddgrug / \ Mold
Sir y Fflint Flintshire
CH7 4LN Ysgol Parc Y Llan CH7 4LN

Ffon: 01352 770304
Ffacs: 01352 770304

Tele 01352 770304
Fax 01352 770304

Mrs. M Morris Mr. M Ashford
Ysgrifenyddes/Secretary Pennaeth/Headteacher
12t February 2016

Dear Chair of Governors,

We acknowledge receipt of your letter on 4t February 2016 formally asking Ysgol Parc y Llan to permanently
federate with Ysgol Llanfynydd. We also thank you for your kind words, recognising the work and
commitment by Mr Ashford and the support Ysgol Parc y Llan have provided to your school.

We appreciate Ysgol Llanfynydd has and is continuing to go through a period of uncertainty with regards to its
future in light of the Flintshire School Modernisation Programme.

We are very proud of Ysgol Parc y Llan’s achievements and successes, highlighted in our ESTYN Inspection in
2015, GWE visit feedback and also Flintshire County Council request for us to assist in supporting Ysgol
Llanfynydd. Ysgol Parc y Llan works extremely well as a team and this is driven primarily through having a
strong leadership team, which is lead by our Headteacher, Mr Ashford.

I am pleased that our school has been a sympathetic friend to Ysgol Llanfynydd and that we have played an
active supporting role during the consultation period.

We as a Governing Body appreciate that there could be further changes regarding schools in our area in the
coming years which may be difficult for us as a Governing Body, but we need to put the needs of Ysgol Parc y
Llan first, and the desire to provide a first class education for our children.

The full Governing Body met on Thursday 11% February to give the proposal full consideration and review the
impact of the proposal on the Headteacher, staff, parents and pupils. Considerable discussions between
Governing Body Members regarding the possibility of a federation with Ysgol Llanfynydd took place followed
by a vote. The decision was not favourable, and so I regret to inform you that Ysgol Parc y Llan would not be
willing to enter a federation with Ysgol Llanfynydd.

Ysgol Parc y Llan Governing Body was committed to help Ysgol Llanfynydd during the consultation period,
and will continue to provide support until the end of July 2016. I believe we have played a very supportive role

to ease the concerns of Ysgol Llanfynydd’s parents and staff.

I appreciate that this is not the response that you would have wished for but we have to do what is the best for
Ysgol Parc y Llan at this time.

Kind Regards,
Natalie Jones

Chair of Governors - Ysgol Parc y Llan

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



RECORD NO. 3254

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET RECORD OF DECISION

DATE OF MEETING: 19 APRIL 2016 AGENDA ITEM NO. 8
REPORT OF: Chief Officer (Education and Youth)
SUBJECT: SCHOOL MODERNISATION - SCHOOL

STANDARDS AND REORGANISATION ACT 2013 -
YSGOL LLANFYNYDD

RECOMMENDATIONS OF REPORT: @) Cabinet is requested to consider the
responses from the statutory
objection period for  Ysgol
Llanfynydd; and

(b) Cabinet is requested to determine
whether to implement the proposal
for school organisational change at
Ysgol Llanfynydd.

DECISION: That Ysgol Llanfynydd be closed as of
31/08/16 with pupils transferring to other
schools in accordance with parental

preference.
REASON FOR DECISION: As in the report.
CONSULTATIONS No further consultations are required as
REQUIRED/CARRIED OUT: part of the School Organisation Code.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: There is sufficient staff capacity to prepare

the detailed transition plans for pupils.

Should the current proposals be
implemented, the Council will work with the
current members of staff at Ysgol
Llanfynydd, including teaching and support
staff, should they seek redeployment
opportunities.  Staff displaced by the
proposal may have the opportunity to be
employed in the local primary network.

The estimated annual costs of transport as

a result of the proposal are £16,150.
However, actual transport costs can only

Page 63



be assessed once all families have a
school place confirmed at an alternative
school.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: Councillors: Bithell, Brown, Butler,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and
Shotton - School Governors

DISPENSATIONS None.
DATE PUBLISHED: 20 April 2016
SIGNED ? S (Proper Officer)

T e

Page 64



To Democracy & Governance Manager

We, the undersigned, wish to call in the following decision of the Cabinet:

Date of Cabinet meeting: }Ol‘q 'L ...... N, Qs—‘f-{oc ............
: AR -
Report title: gd"Qg\mOd%wM“Song\/reOf ...... o~
et Joif
Record of Decision number: ............... gggLﬁ .............................................
Reason(s) for call in: \ﬂcoffﬁd‘bq"“o\@(\dpfocaﬂ‘
ﬂ@‘f%\\‘%&d*rﬁréwdlaéhwﬂﬂﬁm%u g veat o
D Howerd _
M%(MFMMWWA ...............................................................................
Garnmaets; oVl be olire (Ghtlelen g0y foor o~ o)
In initiating this call in, we recognise that it will be regarded as a gross ey

discourtesy to the committee if members who have requested the call in pas ﬁf r
do not attend the meeting of the committee without contacting the

Member Engagement Manager to explain their reasons. L'dé&ﬂm%"’c.‘o/
We understand that the call in meeting will be held within 7 working days
of this call in notice being received and accepted.

Q/l’ o
Printed name

U. Twe@asen

....................................................................................................

Signature t

oA e JACE e
S o B e Neze Stazee
ol S S Aoy sant. HAC £
L e L oo e moo o aoa Mok o o 000 e cbaanote ASobgn Boanat FEIIEREAON000 S oas
B ek o st eaERtio ok i & om0 dEERE 40 a6 00 R oo OB SO Oe I 1 0
e 8 s et oo e G o0 aEa e sareR Al OO0 B BES AR OUGIHG o o ¢
ERR e v L sl e R M MR i U1 0 oo 1o a0 81 e o o0 AR
Call in Notice received.21/%.201¢ Accepted ..2-( ./ 4-.201C
Signed..../ Democracy & Governance Manager

C:\Users\cscslaw\AppData\Local\Temp\11 \notes??j?éﬁ-gzgg.doc



5&53) [Lﬂ-m%,—\:)cﬂoo qug S VM rae O Qd@-phw

Aoh(c h Encole chabdren_ o Seecia ) Mmedica l
N-ecls o f’ogr(.sl\ ,’\’iaej_e ,ch«lu’n;e,: Ore o

aveyl alple QA Near ‘ij Sch=Cls

/ =
K o h = h SN o
| e ) e S I g LLQ“%“&Q /

a_ O)h'\re ’H’wajl\ \S\‘\QB‘Q' (CHAhes ”/l\a(\ a Uilrgaf
Cmf“‘”‘-*ﬁ/\ )‘\u\'o-. Loe nec o C i~y SeJao—\ﬂ ‘l‘lo kap_P

M\Q ULM.QKC aline .

Yo have.  oovike o ey the Gk €4 C'o&iﬁ
o~ ScheS\ \ Wes db tjgu Caleflde Yo e

%\é_, )/\QVV\Q/\ C_OSJ(‘-)

Page 66



	Agenda
	3 Consideration of a matter referred to the Committee pursuant to the Call In Arrangements
	4 School Modernisation - School Standards and Reorganisation Act 2013 - Ysgol Llanfynydd
	Appendix 1 - Llanfynydd Compliance Statement
	Appendix 2 - Objection Report
	Appendix 3 - Estyn Response
	Appendix 4 - Response from Ysgol Parc y Llan, Treuddyn Governors
	Cabinet Record of Decision
	Call In Notice


